LETTER TO SHELBINA TORCHLIGHT

Bacon Chapel Neighborhood

10 January 1902

Clarence, Mo. 

Shelbina TORCHLIGHT:


We now write 1902. This reminds us that we have passed one more milepost one the road from time to eternity. The finger board erected by man upon the highway, directing the way and giving the distance between given points, is to enable the traveler to so direct his course, that he may be able at all times to avoid the byroads and crossroads that lead in the wrong direction, causing delay and disappointment. So in wishing the many readers of the TORCHLIGHT a happy New Year, a long prosperous, and useful life, we would direct their attention especially to that old and noted signboard, erected on Calvary hill over nineteen hundred years ago, which directs the weary traveler in that straight and narrow way, between two given points, life and death, and suggest that they study its teachings and obey its injunctions, for in so doing, at the end of the journey a life will begin that has no ending, no disappointments, no discouragement. All will be peace and happiness. May all so live that they will be prepared to enjoy this blissful abode.


We begin our task this New Years’ week with the name of one of the oldest and best citizen,

FRANCIS P. TAYLOR


Mr. Taylor is a son of Major Taylor of Kentucky, who came to this neighborhood in ’39 and settled or a tract of land one mile north and one and three fourths miles west of Bacon Chapel, where he lived to a ripe old age, having died many years ago. Francis P. Taylor was born in Kentucky in 1829. When a baby in his father emigrated to Missouri settling in Howard county. In a short time he settled in Monroe county where he remained till he was ten years old. At this his father came to Shelby county and settled on the above named land where the subject of this sketch grew to manhood. Mr. Taylor comes of French descent and is one of these kind hearted, jovial, good natured men. He made a profession of religion in early life and joined Bacon Chapel church, when they worshiped in the log school house one half mile north of the present church. Mr. Taylor married soon after he became of age and entered a tract of land adjoining his father’s on the south, where he improved a good farm, and lived there until his family was grown. Then he sold his farm to Jas Melson and settled one half mile north, where he now lives. Mr. Taylor in 62 joined the confederate army and was with Col. Porter in several engagements. He is one of the men that remembers well the battle at New Ark, Knox county, Mo., when the union soldiers were quartered in a public building having openings in both front and sides. With their long range guns they kept Col. Porter at a safe distance, his men being armed with shot guns and squirrel rifles. Then my father ordered a wagon loaded with straw to be moved up against the rear end of the building and fired. When the wagon reached the building in safety the white bag went up. This saved the building from being destroyed. The men were disarmed, sworn and turned loose. After this Porter said Mr. Taylor surrendered to Col. John F. Benjamin of Shelbyville, expecting to meet the fate of his eighteen comrades at Kirksville; his good nature and manly demeanor toward Col. Benjamin won his sympathy and respect, and all he required of him was to deliver up his gun and horse, pay his assessment and take the oath, which he did willingly, and returned home surprised as well as delighted to escape so easily.


Mr. Taylor has held the position of school director, and has aided in various ways in the religious, political, moral, educational, and social standing of the neighborhood. He has farmed all of his life, in the meantime learning of the plasterers trade and worked at his trade between crop making. “Uncle” Perry Taylor, the name by which we know him best, was on the 22nd day of last January stricken with paralysis and has since been confined to his bed. He is tenderly nursed by his devoted wife, his children and neighbors. “Uncle” Perry us calm and compassionate, realizing that the last milepost along his journey is in sight, and that on reaching it, he will be hold the dawning of that New Year morning, the morning of the resurrection, when his body will come forth from its grave, changed, redeemed, and made a fit habitation for a redeemed soul, reunited with Him who hath redeemed him forever and forever. 

N. B. TAYLOR


Is the oldest of “Uncle” Perry Taylor’s sons. Nathan as he is best known by his friends, was born on his father’s farm and there grew to manhood. Nathan has farmed all his life, having improved a good farm joining the old homestead on the west where he now lives. He professed religion when young and joined Bacon Chapel Church. Being pious and zealous it seemed that he was selected as the one who should take up and wear the mantle of “Uncle” John Walles and became the Sunday school superintendent of old Bacon Chapel. This position he has held for some eighteen years.

WM. M. TAYLOR.


A second son was born and raised on a farm and now owns a fine farm one mile west of the old home. He too, is a member of Bacon Chapel Church. William is road overseer, and has made one or two trips to the far west. He was satisfied with Missouri, especially Shelby County.

R. L. TAYLOR

Is a third son, born and raised on the old farm. Reuben is an extensive farmer, owning and living on a fine farm one and one half miles south of Clarence, where the handles mules as his principal stock. Reuben joined Bacon Chapel Church in early manhood, but his membership is at Zion, M. E. C. S. where he has been steward and Sunday school superintendent for a number of years.

P. H. TAYLOR


A fourth son was also born and raised on the homestead. He too, made a profession of religion and joined Bacon Chapel Church. Hinton, as he is best known, was prominent in church work, holding the office of steward in his church for several years. He has followed farming most of his life. Some three years ago he moved to be West, settling in Chinook, Montana, where he is an honored citizen.

M. H. TAYLOR


Is the fifth and youngest son, also born and raised on the old farm. He too has followed farming the greater portion of his life. Milt, as we call him, made a profession of religion in early life and joined Bacon Chapel Church, living a consistent life. He lived at one time on a farm near Greenwood and was Superintendent of Greenwood Sunday School.


He, like Hinton, moved west and settled in Chinook, Mont., where he is honored and respected by his new friends. All these boys are Democrats and as has been seen, are professors of religion, members of the M. E. C. South, and have taken prominent offices in church and society. Besides these brothers there are three sisters, Mrs. H. C. Cross, Mrs. Ed. Warren, and Mrs. Charlie Carroll. All are members of Old Bacon Chapel Church. They are sons of my schoolmates and associates, and many are the pleasant hours I have spent in their home enjoying the respect and friendship of their noble father and mother. This family is one which we are proud to have known, and proud must be the father and mother, and how truthfully can they say, the world is better off by our having lived in it.

LEVIN DUNCAN


This gentleman was born in Maryland in 1814. He came to Missouri in 1836 and settled on a tract of land, which he improved and lived on for 40 or 50 years. Duncan Chapel is located on this tract for that purpose and the church being named for the generous donor.


Mr. Duncan was a blacksmith by trade which avocation he followed running his farm. His shop was located on the farm a little east of the residence.


Mr. Duncan was a Democrat and a Methodist, being a member of Bacon Chapel for many years. He was a Christian, a worthy man, one who lived up to the reaching of the golden rule. He lived to a good old age and died honored and respected by all who knew him.


William H. Duncan, son of Levin Duncan, was born in 1842 on the old homestead above described. Henry, as he was best known, followed farming all of his life. He owned one of the best farms in his locality, joining his father’s farm on the north. Henry was elected to the office of county judge from the first district which he filled with credit and distinction, so much so that at the close of the term he was elected presiding judge of the county. Early in the beginning he sickened and died. The entire county regretted his death. Judge Duncan was a Democrat and a Methodist, being a member of old Bacon Chapel church for many years. Thus death robbed the community, the church and the county of an upright, honorable and useful man.

J. H. Pollard

